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RURAL ECONOMY AND CONNECTIVITY COMMITTEE 
 
INQUIRY INTO CONSTRUCTION AND PROCUREMENT OF FERRY VESSELS IN 
SCOTLAND 
 
SUBMISSION FROM DUNOON GOUROCK FERRY ACTION GROUP  
 
 
1.  What are your views on the conclusions and recommendations of the programme 

review board with respect to delivering the most effective delivery programme for the 
completion of the two vessels, MV Glen Sannox (vessel 801) and vessel 802?  

 
 It is not obvious that either or both of these vessels should be completed. The total 

final financial cost of both the vessels and the associated shore infrastructure as well 
as their environmental impact needs to be reconsidered. The duel fuel vessels use 
Diesel and Liquified Natural Gas (LNG). LNG though cleaner than diesel is still a 
fossil fuel and it will be transported from Qatar 8,000 miles by sea and 600 miles by 
road through the UK. LNG does not appear to be a ‘green’ option. It also seems that 
the storage facilities for LNG and harbour works for the vessels have not been fully 
considered and costed 

 
2.  What has been the impact of the repeated delays to completion of the contract to 

construct two hybrid ferries on the specific routes and island communities awaiting 
delivery and entry into service of these two vessels?  

 
 The impact is not just on the communities awaiting these vessels. The delays and 

cost overruns have impacted all aspects of ferry service delivery. We have no doubt 
that the decision not to proceed with resumption of a vehicle ferry service between 
Dunoon and Gourock was influenced by the massive overspend on 801 & 802. The 
linkspan at Gourock was also not maintained and its failure in late 2019 has resulted 
in considerable ongoing disruption to services to Dunoon, Arran and Bute.  

 
3.  What actions can be taken, in particular with respect to improved contract 

management processes, to ensure future contracts of this type are delivered a) on 
time; and b) on budget?  

 
 Transport Scotland (TS) effectively control both CMAL and CalMac yet they have 

demonstrated a complete lack of expertise both in Maritime matters and in project 
management. In the case of Dunoon – Gourock, when they were putting the service 
out to tender in 2011, they were originally going to request the wrong class of vessel 
for the waters until this was pointed out to them by members of the public. When 
they did accept a tender, they clearly did no due diligence as they accepted a vessel 
which was already known to be incapable of operating reliably on the route. In fact, 
that vessel even has a restriction that it can sail only in “favourable weather” which is 
defined as “fine, clear, settled, weather with a sea state such as to cause only 
moderate rolling and or pitching”. TS were then tasked with project managing 
obtaining a replacement service in 2017, they had six years to achieve this but failed 
and people are still waiting for the vessels branded by Alex Neil as “not fit for 
purpose” to be replaced. 
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 There needs to be a complete restructuring, perhaps disbanding, of the Transport 
Scotland ferries unit. Contracts need to be managed by staff with professional 
expertise in maritime matters and project management and ferry users need to be 
much more deeply involved in specifying the type of service required. 

 
4.  What key challenges need to be addressed in procuring new vessels to support 

Scotland’s ferry network and how might these be overcome?  
 
 New vessels need to be procured at a far higher rate than at present. Also harbour 

infrastructure needs to be adequately maintained.  
 
5.  How might the experience of the procurement and fulfilment of the current hybrid 

ferries contract inform the development of an updated Ferries Plan?  
 
 The hybrid ferries fiasco demonstrates an inability to take a strategic overview of 

ferries as an integral part of the transport network. It is questionable if Arran users 
really want a vessel of the type planned and they along with Bute are suffering from 
the failure of the linkspan at Gourock which is their “Port of Refuge”. At the same 
time Dunoon users are suffering a truly miserable service compared with the 
previous reliable and much loved “Streaker” vehicle service. The West Coast also 
suffers from repeated and prolonged blockages of the A83 at the rest-and-be-
thankful. 

 
 A strategic perspective would have resumed a vehicle ferry service between Dunoon 

and Gourock with a regular service giving a good reason to maintain the Gourock 
linkspan (to the benefit of Arran and Bute). Smaller interchangeable vessels could 
have been used to service Arran, Bute and Dunoon, giving operational flexibility. The 
Dunoon-Gourock crossing would have also provided capacity on a viable alternative 
route at times when the A83 is blocked. The Hunter’s Quay – McInroy’s Point 
crossing is not an alternative when the A83 is blocked because of capacity and the 
high cost of individual single or return tickets. 

 
 Ferry crossings to and from Cowal account for 25% of the entire vehicle ferry 

carryings in Scotland. The updated Ferries Plan must consider how that and the 
Arran, and Bute crossings fit into the transport network as a whole. 

 
6.  What are the likely implications of the Scottish Government’s decision to take 

Ferguson Marine Engineering Ltd. into public ownership for the fulfilment of the 
current contract and the award of future contracts for the construction of new ferries?  

 
 When asked why the original contract for 801 & 802 was awarded to Fergusons a 

witness to the Rural Economy and Connectivity Committee stated that it was 
“Incompetence, self-interest and corruption”. It is not obvious that Transport 
Scotland, CMAL, CalMac and Fergusons as they presently exist are going to be able 
to complete the current contract in an acceptable way never mind the replacement of 
the rest of the elderly fleet in an acceptable timescale. 

 
7.  What impact is the United Kingdom’s departure from the European Union likely to 

have on the future award of new ferry construction contracts, in particular as regards 
ongoing compliance with applicable rules on state aid and competitive tendering?  
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 This is unknown and it has to be assumed that rules on state aid and competitive 

tendering will continue to applied at least until it is clear what if any trade deal will be 
struck with the EU. 

 
However, the 2019 judgment at the Court of Session in the case of Pentland Ferries 
against Scottish Ministers has important implications for ferry services. For example, 
the Scottish Government had believed that it could only subsidise passengers on the 
Dunoon-Gourock crossing, not vehicles. The Pentland court case though showed 
that it is possible to subsidise both passengers and vehicles even when a private 
operator runs an unsubsidised service across the same body of water. Under the 
Marine Cabotage Regulations a payment of a subsidy is only lawful if the state has 
first identified a market failure, however the Government has wide discretion in 
determining what constitutes a market failure. 

 
 An updated Ferries Plan should take careful cognisance of the Pentland Ferries case 

to ensure that routes can be subsidised. The judgment may also be applicable to 
ferry procurement. 

 


